DONCASTER METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL

THURSDAY, 12TH MARCH, 2020

A MEETING of the CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL was held at the COUNCIL CHAMBER - CIVIC OFFICE, DONCASTER on THURSDAY, 12TH MARCH, 2020 at 4.30 PM

PRESENT:

Chair - Councillor Neil Gethin

Councillors Lani-Mae Ball, Nick Allen, George Derx, Susan Durant and Frank Tyas

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:

- Leanne Hornsby Assistant Director, Education, Skills, Culture and Heritage
- Peter Lowe Strategy and Performance Improvement Manager
- Danielle Adams Strategy & Performance Improvement Manager
- Dawn Hall Local Office of the Children's Commissioner Manager
- Members of Doncaster Youth Council
- Young Advisers

		<u>ACTION</u>
25.	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE	
	Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Jane Cox, Councillor Tina Reid, and Councillor Sue Wilkinson and from John Hoare, a Co-optee of the Panel.	
26.	TO CONSIDER THE EXTENT, IF ANY, TO WHICH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS ARE TO BE EXCLUDED FROM THE MEETING.	
	None.	
27.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST, IF ANY.	
	There were no declarations of interest made	
28.	MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL MEETING HELD ON THE 5TH DECEMBER 2019	
	The minutes of the meeting held on the 5th December 2019 were agreed as a correct record.	

29.	PUBLIC STATEMENTS	
	There were no public statements made.	
30.	DONCASTER YOUTH COUNCIL UPDATE	
	The Panel received a report that provided them the opportunity to consider information presented by members of the Doncaster Youth Council. The presentation provided at the meeting gave an update on the work of the Youth Council and the current Knife Crime campaign, as well as progress and contributions to the Children and Young People's Plan Impact report made by children and young people.	
	The presentation covered the following themes;	
	 Be Safe Be Happy and Healthy To Achieve Equality Child Friendly Ambition 	
	Reference was made to some of the outcomes achieved as a result of the campaigns that included;	
	 With Me In Mind – a Doncaster Mental Health Film made by Young People Film (located at The McAuley Catholic High School). Creation of a With Me in Mind "Super Sam Book" that had received positive feedback. Interest by other local authorities in the Youth Council's work. A high number of students (in the region of 1,000) attended the launch event at The McAuley Catholic High School. Key Stage 4 – data had indicated that the gap with national average had been halved in the last 3 years (source DfE). 	
	Members commented on the good work that had been undertaken and showed a high level of creativity and engagement.	
	It was explained that although the annual Youth Consultation, 'Make Your Mark' had experienced a national decline in voting levels, that Doncaster itself had seen an increase.	
	Members were informed that in terms of engagement, these campaigns had received positive feedback from peers.	
	Members were advised that the video 'With Me In Mind' would be taken to all schools by the end of the month. Members of the Youth Council present stated that they would be happy to provide feedback to the Panel.	

In terms of support to those students viewing the film (who may be vulnerable themselves), it was explained that the availability of Mental Health Counsellors and Pastors were highlighted should they need to be accessed.

Knife Crime - it was explained by members of the Youth Council that although this was presented as a major issue across the UK, information demonstrated that it was a relatively low issue in Doncaster. Members were told that the video as part of the "Put An End To Knife Crime" campaign, helped provide assurances to the young people of Doncaster.

In terms of reaching those young people outside of the education system, it was explained that the Youth Council had recognised how popular social media was amongst young people. It was therefore determined that online campaign work was key in engaging with those who were not in school nor school education.

Future Campaigns - Members were informed that future campaigns included 'Protecting the Environment'. It was outlined that events would be held to engage with wider communities within South Yorkshire as part of that campaign.

The second campaign would focus on 'Hate Crime' and it was explained that further discussions would take place as it progressed during the year.

Role of Overview and Scrutiny - In terms of the role of overview and scrutiny, it was explained that support could be provided through further promotion of Youth Council events. This would help to increase interest and participation as well as reaching as many as possible through social media. It was also stated that members of the Youth Council would be happy to attend partner events to speak about their work.

In terms of change, it was noted that it was about working in a line with the views being presented to help shape future policies. It was acknowledged by Members of the Youth Council that it was important to ensure this communication continued.

It was recognised that what the Youth Council was setting out to achieve was working well, and that there was a golden thread in place through everything that is done.

Members were informed that there was an upcoming Civic Mayor Awards that would provide an opportunity for young people in Doncaster to celebrate their achievements. These awards are not based on academia.

Members of the Youth Council were congratulated in providing an

excellent presentation and on the positive work that they have undertaken.

RESOLVED that the Panel;

- Note the information presented which included information on "Put an end to knife crime" campaign.
- Recognise the progress, contributions and impact on the Children and Young People's Plan made by children and young people.
- Endorse and sign up to the Child Friendly Ambition as outlined in the presentations).
- That an update be provided by the Youth Council as part of the Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel 20/21 Workplan. To include progress on 'Make Your Mark' updates on campaigns and future plans.

31. <u>EDUCATION AND SKILLS 2030 FRAMEWORK FOR CONSULTATION UPDATE</u>

The Panel received an update on the final set of priorities and aims, of the Education and Skills 2030 Strategy as it progresses with its final development phase.

Members were reminded that the results of an independent review and extensive consultation of education and skills in Doncaster had previously been presented to the Panel in August 2019. It had also been recommended that an update be provided in respect of the strategy development.

The presentation to the Panel focused on:

- 'You said, we did' how the Panel's feedback from the previous meeting had influenced the strategy.
- The steps taken since the last meeting.
- The Strategic Statement of Intent.
- Developing the Statement of Intent into a full Strategy.
- Timeline for ongoing development and next steps.

Members were reminded that an independent review of the education system had taken place and would provide a focus on what was needed going forward 10 years. It was acknowledged that all age learning would look very different in time and the intention was to strengthen Doncaster's vocational based learning offer (i.e. in addition to traditional academic routes).

Partnership Working – It was explained that partners included the Doncaster College, National College for High Speed Rail, Sheffield Hallam University and University of Sheffield as well as Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust. Members were

informed that efforts were being made to establish a unique offer in Doncaster that would enable individuals to access and undertake training. It was explained that steps were also being taken to develop the creative and digital growth areas with Doncaster already benefiting from a number of courses and resources available in the Borough in addition to those at the University of Sheffield.

Green Technology – It was recognised that there was a desire for the growth of this area with little in place at present, possibly through some form of campus potentially around the waterfront.

Relocation of Doncaster Royal Infirmary – There was a brief discussion regarding the potential relocation of the Doncaster Royal Infirmary. It was recognised that a training and research facility would be key and that there would be benefits to relocating to certain locations.

Pathways into Employment – Members were advised that there were four Centres of Excellence that included engineering, health and medical care, creative and digital industries and finally, green technology. It was explained that there was a need to have the industry in place in order to accommodate more vocational learning. Members were assured that work had taken place alongside the Inclusive Growth Strategy to change Doncaster's industry mix to complement one another. Reference was also made to the social mobility scheme and inclusion programme going forward in the Borough.

It was explained that it was about enabling people to have the right skills and knowledge of career and employment options although presently, that line of sight was not in place.

Timeline - A Member raised concern that 10 years was a considerable amount of time to wait for things to change. It was also felt that that the strategy should provide something for everyone. Members were informed that there would be an action plan in place and workshops to be held but that is not where it finishes. Members were reassured that certain actions would be taken forward sooner and other changes being developed after 5 years to provide long term gains.

Schools - A Member raised their concern that there was an unequal demand for school places with some proving extremely popular. An example of this was made of Doncaster XP, which was believed to be a school that demonstrated best practice and leading the way (and as a result was oversubscribed). A Member questioned whether more schools like Doncaster XP could be developed.

Members were informed that all the building blocks were beginning to come together and work towards that point. It was advised that outcomes needed to be achieved for children and young people in

order to make a difference. It was commented that interesting discussions had taken place with Headteachers and it could be seen that they were starting to think in a different way. It was commented that the small steps being taken and real progress was being made. Members were reminded that the strategy was the result of a culmination of the last few years to get the system back together. It was recognised that Doncaster XP offered a more personalised learning approach with positive outcomes. In respect of Ofsted, it was noted that they would focus more and more on outcomes. It was acknowledged that a number of schools had not received an inspection for some time. There was a brief discussion around Family Hubs and a Member raised concern that certain social pressures would discourage some families from attending. The Director of Learning, Opportunities and Skills stated that comments raised would be fed back and felt that it was about achieving a balance rather than creating barriers. RESOLVED to note the report and receive an update prior to the decision going to Cabinet on the 21st May 2020 as part of the CYP O&S Panel Workplan 2020/2021. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORKPLAN AND THE COUNCIL'S 32. FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS The Senior Governance Officer presented the 2019/20 Scrutiny Work Plan for consideration and reminded Members of the current Forward Plan of key decisions. There was a brief discussion around future items for the Overview and Scrutiny future workplan following the meeting's discussions. RESOLVED the Overview and Scrutiny Work Plan 2019/20 and Forward Plan of key decisions be noted.